
Regular Council Meeting – May 20, 2015 
Page 1 of 11 
 
  
 

CITY OF TAVARES 1 
MINUTES OF REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 2 

MAY 20, 2015 3 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 4 

4:00 p.m. 5 
 6 

COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT     ABSENT 7 
 8 
Kirby Smith, Mayor   9 
Bob Grenier, Vice Mayor 10 
Lori Pfister, Councilmember (joined the meeting at 4:17)       11 
Lisa Johnson, Councilmember 12 
Robert Speaks, Councilmember 13 
 14 
STAFF PRESENT 15 
 16 
John Drury, City Administrator 17 
Nancy Barnett, City Clerk 18 
Lori Houghton, Finance Director 19 
Robert Q. Williams, City Attorney 20 
Chris Thompson, Public Works Director 21 
Lori Tucker, Human Resources Director 22 
Bob Tweedie, Economic Development Director 23 
Joyce Ross, Communications Director 24 
Tammey Rogers, Community Services Director 25 
Richard Keith, Fire Department 26 
Jacques Skutt, Director of Community Development 27 
Stoney Lubins, Police Chief 28 
 29 
 30 
I.  CALL TO ORDER 31 
 32 
Mayor Smith called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m.  33 
 34 
Il. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 35 
 36 
Pastor Rick Fountain, First Baptist Church of Tavares, gave the invocation and led those present 37 
in the Pledge of Allegiance. (Pastor Fountain acknowledged the passing of former Mayor Leo 38 
Vaughn in his invocation.) 39 
 40 
Mayor Smith noted the hearing devices available at the entrance table and requested that cell 41 
phones be silenced. He asked those who wished to speak to Council to fill out the form provided 42 
at the door. 43 
 44 
Mayor Smith noted that Councilmember Pfister would be joining the meeting shortly as she was 45 
returning from attending her daughter’s graduation from Notre Dame. 46 
 47 
IlI. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 48 



Regular Council Meeting – May 20, 2015 
Page 2 of 11 
 
  
 
 1 
Mr. Drury requested to move Tab 8 – Ordinance #2015-09 regarding the Keeping of Chickens, to 2 
be after Tab 10 in order to accommodate Ms. Pfister. 3 
 4 
MOTION 5 
 6 
Bob Grenier moved for approval of the agenda with the proposed change, seconded by 7 
Robert Speaks. The motion carried unanimously 4-0. 8 
 9 
IV. APPROVAL OF MINUTES   10 
 11 
Tab 1) Minutes of May 6, 2015 Regular Council Meeting 12 
 13 
MOTION 14 
 15 
Robert Speaks moved for approval of the minutes of May 6, 2015 as submitted, seconded 16 
by Bob Grenier. The motion was approved unanimously 4-0. 17 
 18 
V. PROCLAMATIONS/PRESENTATIONS 19 
 20 
Tab 2) Presentation of David W. York Award to Utility Department for Reuse System of the 21 
Year 22 
 23 
Mayor Smith presented the David W. York Award – Reuse System of the Year for Communities 24 
between one million and five million gallons per day to Brad Hayes, Director of Utilities, noting it 25 
included all of Mr. Hayes’ staff. Mr. Drury added this is significant as it is a statewide award and 26 
he commended the City Council for approving re-use and the Utility Department staff for their 27 
excellence. 28 
 29 
Vl. SWEARING IN BY CITY ATTORNEY AND DISCLOSURE OF EX PARTE 30 
COMMUNICATIONS 31 
 32 
Attorney Williams advised that Tabs 9 and 10 are second readings related to the rezoning and 33 
Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment for properties along the north side of Caroline Street. 34 
He swore in those who wished to speak. No ex parte communications were reported by City 35 
Council. 36 
 37 
Vll. READING OF ALL ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS 38 
 39 
Ms. Barnett read the following ordinances by title only: 40 

 41 
ORDINANCE 2015-11 42 

 43 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF TAVARES, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE 44 
CITY'S LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS  BY AMENDING  CHAPTER 23,  45 
DIVISION 3, SECTION 23-14, IMPACT FEE WAIVERS; PROVIDING THAT  CITY 46 
IMPACT FEE WAIVERS MAY BE GRANTED AS AN ECONOMIC 47 
DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE ONLY FOR LARGE COMMERCIAL SEAPLANE 48 



Regular Council Meeting – May 20, 2015 
Page 3 of 11 
 
  
 

ENTERPRISES;  DEFINING “LARGE SEAPLANE COMMERCIAL 1 
ENTERPRISES”;  PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING AN 2 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 3 

 4 
ORDINANCE 2015-09 5 

 6 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF TAVARES, FLORIDA AMENDING THE 7 
LAND DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS BY AMENDING CHAPTER 3, 8 
ENTITLED “DEFINITIONS” TO CREATE A DEFINITION FOR A CHICKEN 9 
COOP; AMENDING THE AGRICULTURAL LAND USES ALLOWED UNDER 10 
CHAPTER 8, TABLE 8-2, PERMITTED AND SPECIAL USES, BY ALLOWING 11 
THE KEEPING OF CHICKENS AS A PERMITTED ACCESSORY USE TO A 12 
SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING UNDER CERTAIN CONDITIONS WITHIN THE 13 
RFS-A, RSF-1 and RMF-2 ZONING DISTRICTS; ADDING NOTE 31 TO TABLE 14 
8-2 THAT PROVIDES THE CONDITIONS AND REGULATIONS TO BE APPLIED 15 
TO THE KEEPING OF BACKYARD CHICKENS; SUBJECT TO THE RULES, 16 
REGULATIONS AND OBLIGATIONS ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF TAVARES 17 
COUNCIL; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 18 

 19 
 20 

ORDINANCE 2015-06 21 
 22 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF TAVARES, FLORIDA, REZONING A COMBINED 23 
TOTAL OF APPROXIMATELY 4 ACRES OF PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED 24 
ALONG THE NORTH SIDE OF CAROLINE STREET; FROM RESIDENTIAL MULTI-25 
FAMILY (RMF-2) TO MIXED USE (MU);  SUBJECT TO THE RULES, REGULATIONS 26 
AND OBLIGATIONS ORDAINED BY THE CITY OF TAVARES COUNCIL; 27 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 28 

 29 
ORDINANCE 2015-07 30 

 31 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF TAVARES, FLORIDA, AMENDING THE 32 
TAVARES COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE LAND USE MAP 2020, 33 
PROVIDING FOR A CHANGE OF FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION ON A 34 
COMBINED TOTAL OF APPROXIMATELY 2 ACRES OF PROPERTY 35 
GENERALLY LOCATED ALONG THE NORTH SIDE OF CAROLINE STREET 36 
FROM ALFRED STREET TO ST. CLAIR ABRAMS AVENUE; FROM MEDIUM 37 
DENSITY TO MIXED USE COMMERCIAL; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY 38 
AND CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FORTRANSMITTAL; AND PROVIDING FOR 39 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 40 

 41 
VIII. CONSENT AGENDA 42 
 43 
Mayor Smith asked if anyone in the audience objected to the Consent Agenda item. 44 
 45 
MOTION 46 
 47 



Regular Council Meeting – May 20, 2015 
Page 4 of 11 
 
  
 
Bob Grenier moved to approve the Consent Agenda [Tab 3 – Amendment 1 to the State 1 
Revolving Fund Loan Agreement for Time Extension for Pre-Construction Activities for the 2 
CRA Stormwater Project; Tab 4 – Amendment 2 to the State Revolving Fund Loan 3 
Agreement for Drinking Water Rehabilitation in the CRA; and Tab 4 – Amendment 3 to the 4 
State Revolving Fund Loan Agreement for Wastewater Treatment & Stormwater 5 
management for the CRA], seconded by Robert Speaks.  6 
 7 
The motion carried unanimously 4-0. 8 
 9 
IX. ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS 10 
 11 
First Reading 12 
 13 
Tab 7) Ordinance #2015-11 – Impact Fees Waiver for Large Commercial Seaplane 14 
Manufacturers - Read for First Reading Only 15 
 16 
Tab 9) Ordinance #2015-06 – Rezoning of 4 Acres located on the North Side of Caroline 17 
Street West of St. Clair Abrams from RMF-2 to Mixed Use – City Initiated – Second Reading 18 
 19 
Mr. Skutt stated this ordinance proposes a rezoning of 14 parcels of property located on the north 20 
side of Caroline Street from residential multi-family RMF-2 to Mixed Use. He summarized that 21 
when the reconstruction of Caroline Street was being undertaken about a year and a half ago, the 22 
City Council requested staff to initiate the rezoning when the project was complete. The Alfred 23 
Street corridor is identified as a transition area in the city’s Master Plan between predominantly 24 
residential areas north of Caroline Street and predominantly commercial uses that are in the 25 
downtown core area. He noted he had provided a chart that shows allowable uses under the 26 
Land Development Regulations for the RMF-2 zoning and also the Mixed Use Zoning. Between 27 
the two, certain low intensity commercial or office uses are allowed with provision that any non-28 
residential use cannot be over 5,000 square feet in area. 29 
 30 
Mr. Skutt reviewed the notification process that had been followed and the presentation at the 31 
Planning & Zoning Board meeting. Mr. Drury asked if currently along Caroline Street there is 32 
Mixed Use. Mr. Skutt answered that on the south side of Caroline it is entirely Mixed Use and on 33 
the north side of Caroline Street it is sporadic. Mr. Drury asked for clarification that when the 34 
public meetings were held with the community, that is the use that was approved. Mr. Skutt 35 
confirmed that when the Master Plan was created, this was the plan proposed by the community. 36 
 37 
Mayor Smith asked Ms. Sheppard to come forward from the audience. 38 
 39 
(At 4:17 p.m. Councilmember Pfister joined the meeting.) 40 
 41 
June Sheppard – 1980 Golden Palm Circle 42 
 43 
Ms. Sheppard said she also owns property on 110 E. Ianthe Street. She said she is concerned 44 
that the rezoning will lower values of the residential property that is on the other side of the alley 45 
that has to stay residential. In addition she said she is concerned about access by the emergency 46 
vehicles on Caroline Street and at the intersections. She asked where handicapped parking 47 
would be placed. She said she is concerned about the congestion in that area. 48 



Regular Council Meeting – May 20, 2015 
Page 5 of 11 
 
  
 
 1 
MOTION 2 
 3 
Bob Grenier moved to approve Ordinance #2015-06, seconded by Robert Speaks.  4 
 5 
Vice Mayor Grenier noted the city has criteria about what can be built on the vacant lots similar to 6 
surrounding properties. Mr. Skutt said the LDR’s specify what type of commercial uses would be 7 
allowed. 8 
 9 
Councilmember Pfister asked Mr. Drury to summarize Ms. Sheppard’s objections. 10 
 11 
Mr. Drury said there are some properties being redeveloped along Caroline Street that are of a 12 
mixed use nature. The Master Plan was developed about eight years ago which identified 13 
residential, transitional zone, and commercial. The transitional zone is Caroline Street and Alfred 14 
Street. The transitional zone means “mixed use.” He said the staff is trying to make the whole 15 
corridor mixed use to allow either residential or commercial or both. He said Ms. Sheppard’s 16 
issue is that she has property on the next street up on Ianthe and she is concerned that it could 17 
devalue that property because someone may not want to live on Ianthe if they are close to a 18 
mixed use zoning. 19 
 20 
Councilmember Pfister noted there are buffer regulations. Mr. Skutt confirmed and described 21 
some of the typical buffers. She asked Mr. Skutt about a convenience store use. Mr. Skutt said a 22 
convenience store would only be allowed as a special use that would have to be approved by City 23 
Council. It was noted the current commercial use is primarily professional offices. 24 
 25 
The motion carried unanimously 5-0. 26 
 27 
Tab 10) Ordinance #2015-07 – Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment for 2 Acres on the 28 
North Side of Caroline Street – Second Reading 29 
 30 
Mr. Skutt said this amendment changes the future land use from medium density residential to 31 
mixed use commercial. He said the change does not include the five properties that are between 32 
New Hampshire and Sinclair because those properties already have a mixed use commercial 33 
land use designation. He said the Planning & Zoning Board voted 3-2 to recommend approval at 34 
their April meeting and staff recommends approval. 35 
 36 
MOTION 37 
 38 
Bob Grenier moved to approve Ordinance #2015-07, seconded by Robert Speaks. The 39 
motion carried unanimously 5-0. 40 
 41 
Tab 9) Ordinance #2015-09 – Amendment to Land Development Regulations for the 42 
Keeping of Chickens in Certain Residential Districts – Second Reading 43 
 44 
Mr. Skutt stated that on April 15, City Council requested staff to draft a proposed amendment to 45 
the code to allow the keeping of chickens. The proposed ordinance mirrors Lake County’s 46 
regulations regarding backyard chickens. The County allows the keeping of chickens in 47 



Regular Council Meeting – May 20, 2015 
Page 6 of 11 
 
  
 
residential zonings that allow single family dwellings. They do not allow them in mobile home 1 
parks or residential professional mixed use districts.  2 
 3 
He said the proposed ordinance will allow the keeping of chickens in an RFS-A, RFS-1 and RMF-4 
2 zoning which matches the County’s zonings and will not include Planned Development 5 
Communities. He reviewed the details of the criteria for keeping chickens outlined in the 6 
ordinance. 7 
 8 
Mayor Smith invited Lou Buigas to speak. 9 
 10 
Lou Buigas, 206 W. Main Street, Tavares 11 
 12 
Ms. Buigas said although she loves the chickens, she did not think chickens belong in the city 13 
limits or in a cage. 14 
 15 
Mayor Smith invited Council discussion. 16 
 17 
Vice Mayor Grenier expressed concern about possible abuses of the ordinance. 18 
 19 
Councilmember Pfister said she loves the chickens and seeing them on the streets recently. She 20 
said, however, that although she had pushed for the ordinance she has had a change of heart 21 
due to the constraint of the chicken coop dimensions and her observations of cooped up chickens 22 
in a truck. 23 
 24 
Mayor Smith said he disagreed and thought chickens could very helpful to families and he 25 
supported the ordinance. He said there had been no opposition before for not having chickens 26 
although there was one today. 27 
 28 
Vice Mayor Grenier reiterated his concern about the abuse of the law and property values. 29 
 30 
Councilmember Johnson said she also had concerns about the implementation and enforcement 31 
of the ordinance. She said she agreed that chickens should not be in a cage and should be in a 32 
rural area. 33 
 34 
Councilmember Speaks said chickens should be in the County. 35 
 36 
MOTION 37 
 38 
Lori Pfister moved to not approve Ordinance #2015-09, seconded by Bob Grenier. The 39 
motion carried 4-1 as follows: 40 
 41 
Kirby Smith   No 42 
Bob Grenier   Yes 43 
Lisa Johnson   Yes 44 
Lori Pfister   Yes 45 
Robert Speaks   Yes 46 
 47 
Xl. GENERAL GOVERNMENT 48 



Regular Council Meeting – May 20, 2015 
Page 7 of 11 
 
  
 
 1 
Tab 11) FDOT Traffic Signal Maintenance and Compensation Agreement 2 
 3 
Mr. Thompson said the city receives compensation from FDOT annually for the maintenance of 4 
the traffic signals that are on state highways within the city limits. The most recent agreement was 5 
done in 2002. For the last several months FDOT has been working on a revision to that 6 
agreement and the new 20 year agreement is included in the agenda packet that will take effect 7 
July 1, 2015. 8 
 9 
Currently Tavares receives $15,998 a year for the maintenance of the state lights. in the new 10 
agreement that will be increased to $30,400 and will be adjusted every year thereafter. The city 11 
has an Interlocal agreement with Lake County for traffic light maintenance currently and have 12 
reviewed the requirements of the new agreement. Everything will be handled under the current 13 
agreement however the city will probably request a revision to that agreement because the city’s 14 
costs will go up about $327.00 per signalized intersection. Staff recommends that City Council 15 
approve the new agreement. 16 
 17 
MOTION 18 
 19 
Lori Pfister moved to approve the FDOT Traffic Signal Maintenance and Compensation 20 
Agreement, seconded by Bob Grenier. The motion carried unanimously 5-0. 21 
 22 
Tab 12) Lake County Clerk’s Building 23 
  24 
Mr. Tweedie reported that Council has previously approved the purchase of the Clerk of Court’s 25 
Public Records Center and adjacent property from the Board of County Commissioners. The 26 
closing date of that sale is scheduled for May 27th. Council has approved staff to move forward 27 
with a request for proposal to redevelop that property in a manner consistent with the Downtown 28 
Master Plan. The RFP should be ready sometime in July. The time frame is unknown for 29 
complete redevelopment. Staff has explored the potential disposition of the building. It has been 30 
determined that the estimated cost of demolition is about $65,000 without any environmental 31 
concerns or asbestos. Mr. Tweedie advised that it would be prudent for the city to do an 32 
environmental asbestos assessment given the age of the building. The County has two firms 33 
under contract that could be used to do the assessment. The cost would be about $5,000. 34 
 35 
Mr. Tweedie reviewed the various options and staff recommendation to have the city do the 36 
asbestos environmental assessment report at a $5,000 cost and report back to the Council the 37 
findings for its decision. 38 
 39 
Councilmember Speaks asked about any other environmental concerns rather than just asbestos. 40 
Mr. Tweedie said staff had reviewed the property and determined that there did not appear to be 41 
any other issues at this time. Mayor Smith asked if there was any downfall to wait and review the 42 
RFP results first. 43 
 44 
Mr. Drury said he thought the RFP’s might be incomplete because of not knowing the level of 45 
asbestos. The downfall is that proposers will not be able to submit firm prices. 46 
 47 



Regular Council Meeting – May 20, 2015 
Page 8 of 11 
 
  
 
Attorney Williams agreed that he thought the city will be able to get a more competitive bid if the 1 
information is available. 2 
 3 
Mayor Smith asked if there were any funds elsewhere besides contingency reserves. Mr. 4 
Tweedie responded that he did not have that in his budget. Mayor Smith asked about the plan to 5 
sell the generator. Mr. Drury said staff will return to Council after the environmental assessment is 6 
complete with a bid for demolishing the property that will include a credit for the generator in 7 
addition to some credit for other items in the building. 8 
 9 
Councilmember Pfister questioned the time frame between Option 4 and Option 5. She 10 
expressed concern about having another empty building. Mr. Drury said he hoped to return the 11 
first meeting in July with the final recommendation, cost and funding. 12 
 13 
MOTION 14 
 15 
Lori Pfister moved to approve Option 5 [Have the City do the asbestos environmental 16 
assessment report using one of the County’s contractors and report back to the Council 17 
the findings and then make a decision whether or not to have the city do the complete 18 
demolition work or have the developer do the demolition work.] The motion was seconded 19 
by Bob Grenier. The motion carried unanimously 5-0. 20 
 21 
Tab 13) Update on Community Grant Program 22 
 23 
Ms. Barnett reported that the fiscal year 2015 budget included $2500 for community grants. 24 
Council approved a policy in December to allocate grants of up to $500 each to not for profit 25 
organizations with a 501C3 status for social services, senior services, and children services type 26 
programs. The program was advertised in December with a deadline of February 1st and staff 27 
brought those applications back to Council. On March 18th Council approved three grants: Early 28 
Learning, Lifestream, and New Vision for a total of $1500 which left $1000 in the budget. 29 
 30 
Ms. Barnett noted the options provided are to re-advertise for additional grants or roll over the 31 
remaining funds to include in the next year so that only $1500 would need to be budgeted to 32 
create another $2500 budget line item for this program. 33 
 34 
MOTION 35 
 36 
Lisa Johnson moved to request staff to re-advertise the Grant Program in order to allocate 37 
the remaining funds in the current fiscal year budget, seconded by Robert Speaks. 38 
 39 
Councilmember Pfister said she preferred to roll over the funds. She asked if there had been a 40 
deadline. Mr. Drury noted there was a deadline and three awards were given and the grant 41 
program ended. He said the question is whether to use the money and re-advertise or roll over 42 
the money into next year’s program. 43 
 44 
The motion failed 4 to 1 as follows: 45 
 46 
Kirby Smith  No 47 
Bob Grenier  No 48 



Regular Council Meeting – May 20, 2015 
Page 9 of 11 
 
  
 
Loti Pfister  No 1 
Lisa Johnson  Yes 2 
Robert Speaks No 3 
 4 
MOTION 5 
 6 
Lori Pfister moved to approve Option 2 [to roll over the remaining $1000 into the next 7 
fiscal year’s budget to combine with $1500 for a total of $2500.00 for next year’s 8 
community grant program], seconded by Bob Grenier. The motion carried 4-1 as follows: 9 
 10 
Kirby Smith  Yes 11 
Bob Grenier  Yes 12 
Loti Pfister  Yes 13 
Lisa Johnson  No 14 
Robert Speaks Yes 15 
 16 
XII. OLD BUSINESS 17 
 18 
XIII. NEW BUSINESS 19 
 20 
XlV. AUDIENCE TO BE HEARD   21 
 22 
Historical Report – Betty Burleigh 23 
 24 
Ms. Burleigh reported that on this date in 1948 in the Tavares newspaper was the headline 25 
“Efficient Volunteer Fire Department under Chief Lansing Taylor and Assistant Chief Paul Reid 26 
Results in Lower Insurance Rates.” She said that yesterday Tammy Sue of the Police 27 
Department took her on a tour and showed her historical photographs that she had enlarged and 28 
framed. One of them was the Marshall Charlie Loper, the town Marshall and a civil war veteran. 29 
 30 
Ms. Burleigh noted that she had attended the Public Works Expo on Saturday and that she won 31 
the free seaplane ride. 32 
 33 
XV. REPORTS 34 
 35 
Tab 14) City Administrator 36 
 37 
Mr. Drury welcomed back resident Denise Laratta after a few months absence. He noted that 38 
Tavares had made the front cover of the Washington D.C. Transportation Research Board Study 39 
on the practice of preserving and developing public use seaplane bases. He said it is a significant 40 
recognition for Tavares and will be a tool used worldwide. 41 
 42 
Mr. Drury said he would not be at the next meeting as his daughter is graduating from law school. 43 
Lori Houghton will be at the National Government Financial Association Group, so he has asked 44 
Attorney Williams to be in charge while he is gone.  45 
 46 
City Clerk 47 
 48 



Regular Council Meeting – May 20, 2015 
Page 10 of 11 
 
  
 
Economic Development 1 
 2 
Human Resources Director 3 
 4 
Public Works Director 5 
 6 
Mr. Thompson invited Council to come to Public Works for its third annual Hot Dog Day tomorrow 7 
from noon to 1 pm.  8 
 9 
Finance Director 10 
 11 
Community Services Director 12 
 13 
Tab 15) City Council 14 
 15 
Councilmember Pfister 16 
 17 
Councilmember Pfister announced that she had just returned from South Bend Indiana to attend 18 
the graduation of her daughter Delaney Pfister from Notre Dame. 19 
 20 
Vice Mayor Grenier 21 
 22 
Vice Mayor Grenier added his congratulations to Ms. Pfister. He thanked the staff for continuing 23 
to work on the restoration of Squibb Park. He invited everyone present to attend the ceremony on 24 
Monday at Umatilla Glendale Cemetery where a special memorial monument was being installed 25 
for Private Robert McTureous, a Medal of Honor recipient during WW ll. He said he would also be 26 
visiting Waldo, Florida in his Yankee uniform to celebrate the paroling of the Florida confederate 27 
soldiers who fought in the civil war. 28 
 29 
Historical information on names of local lakes – Lake Idamere and Lake Elsie: Vice Mayor 30 
Grenier stated that Lake Idamere was identified by that name in 1937. It had originally been 31 
named by Major Cooper for his wife Ida and called Lake Ida Mae. Lake Elsie was originally called 32 
Hewitt Lake. The owner Sarah Hewitt sold the property to Elsie Butler and then in 1899, Elsie 33 
sold several lots to a foreign investment company in Norwich, England. When Ms. Hewitt sold the 34 
property to Ms. Butler, the name was changed to Lake Elsie. 35 
 36 
Councilmember Speaks 37 
 38 
Councilmember Speaks commended Mr. Thompson on the Public Works Expo on Saturday in 39 
Wooton Park. He said he and his wife just visited Jerusalem and the Holy Land for 12 days and 40 
he recommended everyone to visit there if they had the opportunity. 41 
 42 
Councilmember Johnson 43 
 44 
Councilmember Johnson said on May 30th she will celebrate her three month anniversary at her 45 
new location. She said the growth has been phenomenal and she appreciates the support of the 46 
community. She said she had a customer come in from Tampa recently who had seen her 47 
business on “Yelp’” and she encouraged him to take a seaplane ride. 48 



Regular Council Meeting – May 20, 2015 
Page 11 of 11 
 
  
 
 1 
Councilmember Johnson said her daughter Jordan was graduating from 5th grade and going into 2 
6th grade and has been recognized as Student of the Year and next year she will be attending 3 
Tavares Elementary School. 4 

 5 
Mayor Smith 6 
 7 
Mayor Smith commended Mr. Thompson on the Public Works Expo. He said it was very well 8 
done and all the departments who participated did a great job. 9 
 10 
Mayor Smith said on this day in history in 1927  Charles Lindbergh started off on his transatlantic 11 
flight from Roosevelt Field and a few years later in 1932, Amelia Earhart left Newfoundland for 12 
her solo flight. 13 

 14 
Adjournment 15 
 16 
There was no further business and Mayor Smith adjourned the meeting at 5:15 p.m.  17 
 18 
Respectfully submitted, 19 
 20 
 21 
_________________________________ 22 
Nancy A. Barnett, City Clerk, MMC 23 


	UVIII. CONSENT AGENDA
	Mayor Smith asked if anyone in the audience objected to the Consent Agenda item.
	UMOTION
	UIX. ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS
	UFirst Reading
	UTab 7) Ordinance #2015-11 – Impact Fees Waiver for Large Commercial Seaplane Manufacturers - Read for First Reading Only
	UTab 9) Ordinance #2015-06 – Rezoning of 4 Acres located on the North Side of Caroline Street West of St. Clair Abrams from RMF-2 to Mixed Use – City Initiated – Second Reading
	Mr. Skutt stated this ordinance proposes a rezoning of 14 parcels of property located on the north side of Caroline Street from residential multi-family RMF-2 to Mixed Use. He summarized that when the reconstruction of Caroline Street was being undert...
	Mr. Skutt reviewed the notification process that had been followed and the presentation at the Planning & Zoning Board meeting. Mr. Drury asked if currently along Caroline Street there is Mixed Use. Mr. Skutt answered that on the south side of Carolin...
	Mayor Smith asked Ms. Sheppard to come forward from the audience.
	(At 4:17 p.m. Councilmember Pfister joined the meeting.)
	UJune Sheppard – 1980 Golden Palm Circle
	Ms. Sheppard said she also owns property on 110 E. Ianthe Street. She said she is concerned that the rezoning will lower values of the residential property that is on the other side of the alley that has to stay residential. In addition she said she i...
	UMOTION
	Bob Grenier moved to approve Ordinance #2015-06, seconded by Robert Speaks.
	Vice Mayor Grenier noted the city has criteria about what can be built on the vacant lots similar to surrounding properties. Mr. Skutt said the LDR’s specify what type of commercial uses would be allowed.
	Councilmember Pfister asked Mr. Drury to summarize Ms. Sheppard’s objections.
	Mr. Drury said there are some properties being redeveloped along Caroline Street that are of a mixed use nature. The Master Plan was developed about eight years ago which identified residential, transitional zone, and commercial. The transitional zone...
	Councilmember Pfister noted there are buffer regulations. Mr. Skutt confirmed and described some of the typical buffers. She asked Mr. Skutt about a convenience store use. Mr. Skutt said a convenience store would only be allowed as a special use that ...
	The motion carried unanimously 5-0.
	UTab 10) Ordinance #2015-07 – Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment for 2 Acres on the North Side of Caroline Street – Second Reading
	Mr. Skutt said this amendment changes the future land use from medium density residential to mixed use commercial. He said the change does not include the five properties that are between New Hampshire and Sinclair because those properties already hav...
	UMOTION
	Bob Grenier moved to approve Ordinance #2015-07, seconded by Robert Speaks. The motion carried unanimously 5-0.
	UTab 9) Ordinance #2015-09 – Amendment to Land Development Regulations for the Keeping of Chickens in Certain Residential Districts – Second Reading
	Mr. Skutt stated that on April 15, City Council requested staff to draft a proposed amendment to the code to allow the keeping of chickens. The proposed ordinance mirrors Lake County’s regulations regarding backyard chickens. The County allows the kee...
	He said the proposed ordinance will allow the keeping of chickens in an RFS-A, RFS-1 and RMF-2 zoning which matches the County’s zonings and will not include Planned Development Communities. He reviewed the details of the criteria for keeping chickens...
	Mayor Smith invited Lou Buigas to speak.
	ULou Buigas, 206 W. Main Street, Tavares
	Ms. Buigas said although she loves the chickens, she did not think chickens belong in the city limits or in a cage.
	Mayor Smith invited Council discussion.
	Vice Mayor Grenier expressed concern about possible abuses of the ordinance.
	Councilmember Pfister said she loves the chickens and seeing them on the streets recently. She said, however, that although she had pushed for the ordinance she has had a change of heart due to the constraint of the chicken coop dimensions and her obs...
	Mayor Smith said he disagreed and thought chickens could very helpful to families and he supported the ordinance. He said there had been no opposition before for not having chickens although there was one today.
	Vice Mayor Grenier reiterated his concern about the abuse of the law and property values.
	Councilmember Johnson said she also had concerns about the implementation and enforcement of the ordinance. She said she agreed that chickens should not be in a cage and should be in a rural area.
	Councilmember Speaks said chickens should be in the County.
	UMOTION
	Lori Pfister moved to not approve Ordinance #2015-09, seconded by Bob Grenier. The motion carried 4-1 as follows:
	Kirby Smith   No
	Bob Grenier   Yes
	Lisa Johnson   Yes
	Lori Pfister   Yes
	Robert Speaks   Yes
	UTab 11) FDOT Traffic Signal Maintenance and Compensation Agreement
	Mr. Thompson said the city receives compensation from FDOT annually for the maintenance of the traffic signals that are on state highways within the city limits. The most recent agreement was done in 2002. For the last several months FDOT has been wor...
	Currently Tavares receives $15,998 a year for the maintenance of the state lights. in the new agreement that will be increased to $30,400 and will be adjusted every year thereafter. The city has an Interlocal agreement with Lake County for traffic lig...
	UMOTION
	Lori Pfister moved to approve the FDOT Traffic Signal Maintenance and Compensation Agreement, seconded by Bob Grenier. The motion carried unanimously 5-0.
	UTab 12) Lake County Clerk’s Building
	Mr. Tweedie reported that Council has previously approved the purchase of the Clerk of Court’s Public Records Center and adjacent property from the Board of County Commissioners. The closing date of that sale is scheduled for May 27PthP. Council has a...
	Mr. Tweedie reviewed the various options and staff recommendation to have the city do the asbestos environmental assessment report at a $5,000 cost and report back to the Council the findings for its decision.
	Councilmember Speaks asked about any other environmental concerns rather than just asbestos. Mr. Tweedie said staff had reviewed the property and determined that there did not appear to be any other issues at this time. Mayor Smith asked if there was ...
	Mr. Drury said he thought the RFP’s might be incomplete because of not knowing the level of asbestos. The downfall is that proposers will not be able to submit firm prices.
	Attorney Williams agreed that he thought the city will be able to get a more competitive bid if the information is available.
	Mayor Smith asked if there were any funds elsewhere besides contingency reserves. Mr. Tweedie responded that he did not have that in his budget. Mayor Smith asked about the plan to sell the generator. Mr. Drury said staff will return to Council after ...
	Councilmember Pfister questioned the time frame between Option 4 and Option 5. She expressed concern about having another empty building. Mr. Drury said he hoped to return the first meeting in July with the final recommendation, cost and funding.
	UMOTION
	Lori Pfister moved to approve Option 5 [Have the City do the asbestos environmental assessment report using one of the County’s contractors and report back to the Council the findings and then make a decision whether or not to have the city do the com...
	UTab 13) Update on Community Grant Program
	Ms. Barnett reported that the fiscal year 2015 budget included $2500 for community grants. Council approved a policy in December to allocate grants of up to $500 each to not for profit organizations with a 501C3 status for social services, senior serv...
	Ms. Barnett noted the options provided are to re-advertise for additional grants or roll over the remaining funds to include in the next year so that only $1500 would need to be budgeted to create another $2500 budget line item for this program.
	UMOTION
	Lisa Johnson moved to request staff to re-advertise the Grant Program in order to allocate the remaining funds in the current fiscal year budget, seconded by Robert Speaks.
	Councilmember Pfister said she preferred to roll over the funds. She asked if there had been a deadline. Mr. Drury noted there was a deadline and three awards were given and the grant program ended. He said the question is whether to use the money and...
	The motion failed 4 to 1 as follows:
	Kirby Smith  No
	Bob Grenier  No
	Loti Pfister  No
	Lisa Johnson  Yes
	Robert Speaks No
	UMOTION
	Kirby Smith  Yes
	Bob Grenier  Yes
	Loti Pfister  Yes
	Lisa Johnson  No
	Robert Speaks Yes

